

# NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY

# **OFFICIAL REPORT**

# Second County Assembly – Third Session

Wednesday 19th June, 2019

The House met at 2.30 p.m.

(Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker (Ms. Emily Oduor) in the Chair)

# PRAYERS

# QUORUM

**Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker**: Serjeant-at-Arms, please confirm if we have quorum and ring the bell for 10 minutes.

(Quorum bell rung)

Ring the bell for another five minutes Serjeant-at-Arms. Please close the door, no one is supposed to leave.

(Quorum bell rung)

Clerk, we now have quorum now, proceed.

# PAPERS

# Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Chair Budget Committee.

Hon. Robert Mbatia: Thank you Madam Speaker. Pursuant to Standing Order 191 (6), I beg to lay the following paper on the table of the assembly today Wednesday 19<sup>th</sup> June 2019; the 14<sup>th</sup> Report of the Select Committee on the County Finance, Budget and Appropriation on the Supplementary Budget 3 for the financial year 2018-19 for the Nairobi City County government and the County Assembly. I wish to table, thank you Madam Speaker.

(Paper laid)

## NOTICES OF MOTION

**Hon. Robert Mbatia**: Thank you Madam Speaker again. I beg to give notice of the following motion; that this Assembly adopts the 14 Report of the Select Committee on the County Finance, Budget and Appropriation on the Supplementary Budget 3 for the financial year 2018-19 for the Nairobi City County government and the County Assembly laid of the Table of the Assembly today Wednesday 19<sup>th</sup> June 2019; I beg to move.

## STATEMENTS

## RESPONSE TO STATEMENT REGARDING THE STATUS OF WOODLEY SOCIAL HALL

**Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker**: Hon. Ngengi do you have any response? Chair Culture, you are supposed to have a response for Hon. Ngengi.

**Hon. Abraham Njihia**: Thank you Madam Speaker. Yes with me I have some responses. One is a response to a statement requested by Hon. Daniel Ngengi MCA form the Chairperson of the Sectoral Committee on Culture and Community Services.

Madam Speaker, I am ready with the statement can I proceed and read them?

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Proceed.

Hon. Abraham Njihia: Hon. Speaker on 28<sup>th</sup> February 2019, Hon. Daniel Ngengi MCA, rose of the floor of the assembly pursuant to Standing Order 45 (2) (c) and requested the Chairperson of the Sectoral Committee on Culture and Community Services for a statement regarding the status of Woodley Social Hall in Woodley Ward.

Hon. Speaker, the Member observed that in the Budget Estimates for the financial year 2018-19, the County government had allocated Kshs.7 million for the completion of the Woodley Social Hall since the project had stalled therefore denying the residents of Woodley Ward the services of a social hall. In the statement, the Member requested the Chairperson to inquire into and report on:

- 1. When will the contactor resume the site at the social hall; and
- 2. When will the project be completed?

Hon. Speaker, the Committee wrote to the County Executive Committee Member responsible for Education, Youth, Sports, Culture and Social Services inviting him for a meeting of the committee which was held on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2019 in the County Assembly pursuant to Standing Order 45 (2) (d). The purpose of the meeting was to enable the CEC Member to furnish the Committee with the response to the statement requested by the Hon. Member.

Hon. Speaker, the Committee also wrote to Hon. Ngengi inviting him to attend the said meeting of the Committee. In this regard, Hon. Speaker, I wish to report to the Assembly as follows:

When Will the Contractor Resume the Site at the Social Hall?

Hon. Speaker, the sector gave priority to the construction of a recreational/sports complex through the upgrading of Joseph Kang'ethe Grounds at Woodley Estate. The contract was awarded to Ms. Derrow Brothers Construction Limited in May 2015 vide Tender No. NCC/SSH/T/550/2014-15 at a cost of Kshs.61, 081,436/= only. The Contractor was paid Kshs.20 million out of Kshs.47, 058,212/= that he had claimed.

Works stopped due to non-payment of the balance and delays in processing of the funds contrary to the signed agreement. The contractor left the site in 2016 and he is yet to resume work on the social hall.

When will the project be completed?

Hn. Speaker, the sector submitted that they had written to the Director Supply Chain Management and Legal Affairs on 19<sup>th</sup> February 2019 to terminate the said project since construction stalled from 2016 despite the contractor receiving payment of the first certificate. The sector further requested the Director Urban Renewal and Project Management to send officers on the ground to assess the remaining work and draw the Bills of Quantities to facilitate the re-advertisement of the project.

Hon. Speaker, Hon. Daniel Ngengi MCA raised concerns over the delay by the contractor to resume site and or the sector to terminate the said contract. The Member was not satisfied with the submission as the sector did not provide evidence on termination or resumption of the contract. Hon. Speaker. The committee resolved to invite the CEC Member on 24<sup>th</sup> of April 2019 for further deliberations where the sector submitted a request for extension of the contract by the contractor.

Further, the Committee urged the CEC Member to ensure that the Contractor is paid and resumes work on the site without much delay. Hon. Speaker, Hon. Daniel Ngengi was satisfied with the response and a copy of the detailed response has been given to him and a further copy is hereby attached to this report. Hon. Speaker, I beg to lay this statement. Thank you.

Hon. Speaker, I don't know whether I should---

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Ngengi, are you satisfied with the answer?

Hon. Daniel Muturi: Hon. Speaker I am satisfied with the answer.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Chair Culture, continue with the next response.

# RESPONSE TO STATEMENT REGARDING STATUS OF JOSEPH KANG'ETHE WOODLEY GROUNDS

**Hon. Abraham Njihia**: Hon. Speaker, response to a statement requested by Hon. Daniel Ngengi MCA, from the Chairperson of the Sectoral Committee on Culture and Community Services. Hon. Speaker on 28<sup>th</sup> February 2019, Hon. Daniel Ngengi MCA rose on the floor of the assembly pursuant to Standing Order 45 (2) (c) and requested the Chairperson of the Sectoral Committee on Culture and Community Services for a statement regarding the status of Joseph Kang'ethe Woodley Grounds in Woodley Ward.

Hon. Speaker, the Member noted that the budget estimates for the FY 2018/19, the County Government had allocated an estimated Ksh. 40 million for the improvement of the said ground but the improvement works are yet to commence. Had the work been completed, the grounds would be beneficial to the community by hosting important events. In the statement, the Member requested that the Chairperson should inquire into and report on;

- 1. Whether the procurement of a contractor has already been done awaiting commencement of work?
- 2. When the County Government is said to commence rehabilitation of the said ground given that procurement window is fast closing as the financial year progresses?

Hon. Speaker, the committee wrote to the County Executive committee member responsible for Education, youth, sports, culture and social services inviting him to a meeting of the committee that was held on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2019 at the County Assembly. The purpose of the meeting was to enable the CECM member furnish the committee with a response to the statement requested by the Member. Hon. Speaker, the committee also wrote to Hon. Ngengi MCA inviting him to attend the said meeting of the committee. In this regard, I wish to report to the Assembly as follows;

#### Whether the procurement of a contractor has already been done awaiting commencement of work?

Hon. Speaker, the sector was allocated Ksh. 40 million in the FY 2018/19 for rehabilitation of the said ground. The sector requested for the survey of the ground by the Chief Officer lands. There were delays in assessing of data on the said grounds from the survey of Kenya thus slowing down the survey process. However, an advertisement for the tender to rehabilitate the grounds was done through the standard newspaper on Tuesday 28<sup>th</sup> May 2019 which we have attached a copy on the same and the sector is awaiting the completion of the procurement process and award of the contract.

When the County Government is said to commence rehabilitation of the said ground given that procurement window is fast closing as the financial year progresses?

Hon. Speaker, the committee was informed that once the procurement process is done, the rehabilitation of the grounds will commence immediately without undue delay. The committee urged the CEC member to fast track the project by hastening the procurement process that the committee termed as a major cause for delay for many county projects. Hon. Speaker, Hon. Daniel Ngengi, MCA was satisfied with this response and a copy of the detailed response has been given to Hon. Daniel Ngengi who requested for the statement and a further copy is hereby attached to this report. Hon. Speaker, I beg to lay this statement.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Ngengi

Hon. Daniel Ngengi: Thank you Hon. Speaker. I am satisfied with the response

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Okay. Chair Culture continue with the response from Hon. Omaya

RESPONSE TO STATEMENT REGARDING THE USE OF LINDI HALL BY PRIVATE INDIVIDUALS

**Hon. Abraham Njehia:** Thank you Hon. Speaker. This is a response to a statement requested by Hon. Jairus Omaya from the Chairperson of the sectoral committee on culture and community services. Hon. Speaker. on 27<sup>th</sup> February 2019, Hon. Jairus Amukoye Omaya, MCA rose on the floor of the House of the Assembly pursuant to Standing Order 45 (2c) and requested the Chairperson of the sectoral committee on culture and community services for a statement regarding the use of Lindi social hall by private individuals. The member noted that the said social hall was constructed by the County Government and accordingly it is a property of the County Government for use by the public for approved events. However, the hall has not fallen into the hands of private individuals---

Hon. Moses Ogeto: Point of order Hon. Speaker

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Yes Deputy Chief Whip, what is the problem?

Hon. Moses Ogeto: Madam Speaker, looking at the time and the business that we have before us. I am on point of order 42 to ask that you change the sequence and proceedings of this House so that the Leader of Majority can present a very serious document which he has been given so that we can either oppose or pass it. Therefore by looking at the mood of this House including that of the Chair of Budget, I request that we move to procedural motion number eight. Thank you Hon. Speaker.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Thank you Minority Whip. I concur with you and because we have a very important document to look at, we can move the two responses to tomorrow afternoon so that we continue with order number eight

#### MOTION

# ADOPTION OF REPORT ON THIRD SUPPLEMENTARY BUDGET ESTIMATES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2018/19

## Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Chair Budget

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Thank you Madam Speaker, I beg to move that this County Assembly adopts the Report of the Select Committee on County Finance, Budget and Appropriations on the Third Supplementary Budget Estimates for the Nairobi City County Government and County Assembly for the FY 2018-19. Madam Speaker, on 30<sup>th</sup> April this year this County Assembly approved the second supplementary budget for the FY 2018-19 totaling Kshs. 33.34billion consisting of Kshs. 23.38billion for recurrent and Kshs. 9.68billion for development expenditures. The pinnacle of the approved budget was to grant authority for increased allocation for garbage collection to Kshs. 1.7billion, transfer of uncommitted funds of Kshs. 801million from the WDF vote to the Public Works Sector for payment of complete WDF projects, additional allocation of Kshs. 162million for settling of pending legal fees, Kshs. 175million for purchase of vehicles for County Executive Committee Members among other minor reallocations across various Sectors. The third supplementary estimates submitted has retained the total County Budget at Kshs. 33.34billion with the revised recurrent budget standing at Kshs. 25.87billion while the revised development budget stands at Kshs. 7.48billion. With that allocation there is a proposed increase in recurrent budget by Kshs. 2.49billion with the development budget projected to reduce by a similar amount.

Madam Speaker, the Finance, Budget and Appropriations Committee has been vocal and unrelenting in reminding this Chamber on the circumstances under which supplementary budgets can be prepared, how they should be submitted and the mode of dispensing with the same in this house. The hallmark of the legal provisions on supplementary budgets is that they should only be prepared to take care of matters that were unforeseen during the time of preparing the annual budget estimates. Further, such matters to be considered must remain unavoidable during the time of preparing the supplementary budget. To provide more clarity on the legal provisions, the provisions of Regulation 39 of the PFM (County Government) Regulations 2015 allow Accounting Officers to spend not more than 10% for various programmes and votes of the approved budgets but the same has to be subject to the concurrence of the County Executive Committee Member responsible for Finance. The concurrence of the County Executive

Committee Member for Finance must then be followed by tabling of revised estimates on the reallocations and over- expenditures to the County Assembly for approval.

**Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker:** Sergent-at-Arms, please close the door. We need to pass a very important bill today and the rate at which Members are moving out then we may not get quorum. So members, kindly be patient for a few more minutes so that we finish this off. Let no one move out now.

Hon. Robert Mbatia: Thank you Madam Speaker. I promise to be very fast. It is therefore the expectation of the law that supplementary estimates should not be used as an avenue to correct mistakes arising from poor planning and improper prioritization at the time of making the annual budget. From the foregoing it is clear that supplementary budgets can be used to request for new funds or to ratify funds that have already been spent within the legal parameters. The Committee in the scrutiny of the tabled estimates confirmed that the third supplementary estimates for the FY 2018-19 have been prepared in tandem with the statutory requirements.

Madam Speaker as I wind up, the third supplementary estimates have been submitted to among others provide basis for payment of pending bills that were verified and approved by the Pending Bills Committee. The Pending Bills Committee was gazetted to scan through the pending claims and satisfy themselves that they are genuine and payable. At the end of the verification period, the Pending Bills Committee okayed bills worth Kshs. 5.3billion out of which Kshs. 2.7billion are for supply of goods and services while Kshs. 2.6billion is for decretal fees.

This is in line with His Excellency the President directive that Counties should set aside resources for settling of pending bills that are devoid of audit queries. This supplementary budget therefore aims to provide resources to the tune of Kshs. 2billion for settling of part of the amount owed to suppliers and Kshs. 2billion for paying part of the pending legal obligations. Further, the Estimates have been submitted to give life to His Excellency the Governor's executive order that all uncommitted amounts for purchase of vehicles across various departments be consolidated and transferred to the Public Health Sector for purchase of ambulances. In this regard, Kshs. 100million has been set aside for purchase of ambulances and the Committee urges the Sector to move with speed and ensure the amounts are committed before the financial year runs out. These represent the fulcrum of the supplementary in addition to the minor reallocations that have been done across various votes in line with the provisions of Section 135 and 154 of the PFM Act 2012.

Madam Speaker, the Finance, Budget and Appropriations Committee has reviewed the Supplementary Estimates together with the submissions of the County Executive Committee Member for Finance and wishes to confirm that the intention is to improve the face of the County by ensuring that those who undertake works for the County are compensated for jobs done. The Committee therefore requests that this House approves the Third Supplementary Estimates for the FY 2018-19 to enable the utilization of the funds before 30<sup>th</sup> June 2019.

Madam Speaker, in conclusion and pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 (2) and (4) of the Public Finance Management Act 2012 and Standing Order 228 the Select Committee on County Finance, Budget and Appropriations recommends that this County Assembly adopts the Report of the Select Committee on County Finance, Budget and Appropriations on the Third Supplementary Budget Estimates

for the Nairobi City County Government and County Assembly for the FY 2018-19. Madam Speaker, with that I want to request Hon. Okeyo to second me. Thank you. I have been informed that he has just walked out, may I request my vice Chair Hon. Karani to second me. Thank you.

Hon. Patrick Karani: Thank you, Madam Speaker, I rise to second.

First, I would like to congratulate His Excellency the Governor for reading on the same lens with the head of the State, the president. This supplementary budget is important and has come at a point of time when the economy of this County is on a downward trend. Many suppliers and contractors have not been paid since the previous regime. I think it is the most appropriate time we honour because as they say, *dawa ya deni ni kulipa*.

Many families have lost properties and relationships have been broken because of the debts. By so doing, we will be able to raise the investors' confidence and improve the microeconomic environment of the County. We will raise this County to a path of financial sustainability. When we pay these debts, we will be able to raise the disposable income of Nairobians who have supplied various goods and services.

Without much ado, I second the Motion.

# (Question proposed)

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Members, you are free to debate.

**Hon. Moses Ogeto:** Hon. Speaker, I want to appreciate the Chair of Budget. He has allocated Kshs.35 million for oversight. I support what the committee has done, led by Leader of Minority who is a member of this Committee. They took their time to look at these provisions---

# (Point of order)

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Leader of Minority.

Hon. Elias Otieno: Madam Speaker, I feel like I am being harassed by the Chairman of Budget Committee. He doesn't recognize I am a member of the Committee. When Hon. Ogeto is contributing to this important motion, he is trying to appreciate our work. It is like I am not part and parcel of the committee yet I am always there. So, you should recognize that. Also, you should always call me to second the motion and let it be the rule. You should respect me as member number one in that committee.

# (Laughter)

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Chair of Budget, do you have something to say about that?

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Madam Speaker, I want to confirm that the Minority Leader, Hon. Elias Otieno is one of the very active members in this committee. He should not be very worried that I am not recognizing him. I want to confirm that he has been there all along. Actually it was an oversight not recognizing him. The only problem is that he is member number 19 in the committee. Thank you, Madam Speaker.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Ogeto, continue.

**Hon. Moses Ogeto**: Hon. Speaker, these are senior Members of this House and I must respect their ages. Hon. Speaker, the most important thing in this supplementary budget is that roads, drainage and bridges has been allocated 3.3 billion. As I support this, this is very good. I saw the Governor update on his social media pages that he has 100 kms. I can estimate that to cost 3.38 billion. As I look at the document, I am able to see that the Assembly has been allocated money for oversight. So, I believe that moving

forward, the Assembly will do its oversight and ensure that all the work the Executive is meant to do will be monitored by Hon. Odalo's committee. The Liaison Chairman should ensure that he allocates a lot of money to this committee. Hon. Speaker, I beg to support. Thank you.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Oyugi.

**Hon. Kennedy Oyugi:** Madam Speaker, thank you for the opportunity. As I rise to support this motion, I have concerns. We have been passing budgets in this House and I am perturbed by the absorption rate at which the executive is implementing development programs in this county. So, I want to urge the Chair of Budget and the House at large. We should not be passing budgets simply for recurrent purposes. We want development in Nairobi County. Otherwise, I support.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Susan Mukungu.

**Hon. Susan Kavaya**: Thank you Madam Speaker for this opportunity. First, I salute the Governor of this great city for leading Nairobi to great success. We can all confirm that this supplementary budget will ensure all contractors and suppliers are paid for the work they did on time. I support.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Warutere.

**Hon. Peter Warutere**: I stand in support of this very important motion particularly on matters health. I can see the generous chairman of Budget committee has allocated enough. Through Hon. Ngengi, we had requested for ambulances for various county health centers. The Chairman of Budget has done exactly that. This is commendable. Even looking at what has been done on the issue of WDF, all elected MCAs have lost out for the last one year. I know something is being done. I can see a vote being moved from WDF to public works. That will ensure that programs for all the 85 wards are captured and we will be visible. Because all the important issues captured in this supplementary budget we believe that the issues that were beforehand, the issues of absorption is addressed once and for all.

The budget committee has been very assertive on matters absorption and something positive is coming from that end. The moment will be timely that we now focus from having the money with us and taking it to the specific programs that the money is supposed to address. Therefore, I think the time has come. We move from rhetoric and get down to business. We support what is happening in the budget committee and all other sectors. We only have about two years to do programs within our wards to ensure that at least we are feasible at that respect. Because of that, I stand to support this supplementary estimate.

#### Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Mover.

Hon. Robert Mbatia: Madam Speaker, I want to appreciate the Members of this Assembly for supporting the report of this supplementary budget. I also want to appreciate the office of the Speaker that has been very supportive. I also appreciate our budget office that has worked tirelessly to have us realize this and the members of the budget committee who worked over the weekend to have this document ready for tabling. On the same, I want to thank the president of the nation who thought it wise that the pending bills be settled once and for all by the national and county governments.

We all know that previously, the counties have not been paying the bills that were spent in the previous dispensation. So, we appreciate that. The bills have to be audited and cleared by the internal auditor. Our Governor, Sonko, thought it wise to set up a pending bills committee that also worked

tirelessly. I want to thank that committee which was led by Professor PLO Lumumba for working within a set period of 9 months to clear and set aside the clean bills and those that were not payable. On this supplementary budget 3, I know Hon. Oyugi has indicated that he has a problem with the absorption, I believe it is a concern by all Members.

In the coming financial year, we have set mechanisms that we believe will address and clear this problem of absorption. I also want to indicate that this supplementary budget has provided for the purchase of ambulances worth 100 million. That will be roughly 9 ambulances. This provides for quick saving of lives. We have 17 sub counties and those ambulances can be placed strategically and we can be able to address some of the problems we have had with the transport of people that need quick medical attention. With the injection of 4 billion into Nairobi through the payment of those bills, this will also spur growth in Nairobi.

I know *mama mboga* in Nairobi will paid a bill that has been pending for a while by a contractor who had not been paid. That will spur growth in the economy of this city of Nairobi and we want to thank the Governor for working very fast. I believe he is the first Governor to activate the order of His Excellency the President. We also send a warning to the executive that we will need to go through those pending bills committee report and we want to make sure that those bills that have been cleared will be the same ones that will be paid. After that, obviously, the Committee of Public Accounts will take up the audit of those payments Madam Speaker. With that, I want to thank you and I want to appreciate every Member.

(Question put and agreed to)

#### **PROCEDURAL MOTION**

#### REDUCTION OF THE PUBLICATION PERIOD

**Hon. Abdi Hassan:** Thank you Madam Speaker, that notwithstanding the provisions of Standing Order 127, this Assembly resolves to reduce the publication period of the Nairobi City County Supplementary Appropriation Bill 2019 (Assembly Bill No. – for 2019) from seven (7) days to one (1) day.

I would like to ask my counterpart of Budget Committee to second the motion Madam Speaker. Thank you.

## Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Minority Leader.

Hon. Elias Otieno: Thank you, Madam Speaker and Majority Leader. I am going to move with speed because the Majority leader has sent me some messages in my phone because he wants to have a meeting with me in the evening and I want to go and hear what he wants. Therefore, Madam Speaker, I want to second the Procedural Motion thank you.

### (Question proposed)

**Hon. Abdi Hassan:** Thank you Madam Speaker, I want to thank the House for supporting the procedural motion and I want to ask the Executive especially the Members of Finance Department to make sure that the Estimate budget which has been put before this House should be utilized before the financial year ends.

I will ask the Chairperson of the Budget Committee to make sure that he is proactive to make sure that happens so that the money cannot be returned to the National Treasury. Thank you Madam Speaker and I beg to reply.

(Question put and agreed to)

#### BILL

## THE NAIROBI CITY COUNTY SUPPLEMENTARY APPROPRIATION BILL, 2019 (ASSEMBLY BILL OF 2019)

#### FIRST READING

A Bill for an Act of Nairobi City County Assembly to authorize the issue of a sum of money out of County Revenue Fund and its application towards the service of the year ending the 30<sup>th</sup> June, 2019 and to appropriate that sum and a sum voted on account by the Nairobi City County Assembly for certain Public Services and purposes.

#### SECOND READING

**Hon. Robert Mbatia**: Thank you, Madam Speaker, I beg to move that this County Assembly of Nairobi move that the Nairobi City County Supplementary Budget three of 2019 be read a second time.

Madam Speaker, this afternoon the County Assembly of Nairobi has just adopted the report of the Finance Budget and Appropriation of the consideration of the third Supplementary Budget estimate for this financial year 2018/2019 ending by 30<sup>th</sup> of June.

In the adopted report, the County Assembly has granted the Authority for payment of pending bills worth 4billion consisting of 2billion for the supply of goods and services and Kshs.2billion for pending legal fees.

Further, the approved budget has authorized the purchase of additional vehicles as Ambulances to bridge the ever-rising demand for urgent medical attention across the County.

These new approvals are in addition to the earlier authority granted for payment of 801million for Ward Development programmes, disbursement of bursaries in excess of Kshs.400million to needy students. Improvement of County Infrastructure with a total development of allocation of Public Works standing at 4.41billion and ensuring a cleaner City with a recurrent budget of Environment sector approved at Kshs. 2.47billion.

The approved budget Madam Speaker, shall grantee timely payment of salaries, efficient operation of County Executive and adequate facilitation for the County Assembly to perform its functions.

Madam Speaker, this appropriation Bill, therefore, aims to provide legal bases for utilization for the funds approved for the County Assembly.

Madam Speaker, the budget and appropriation Committee has scrutinized and summited the bill and confirmed that it is inconsistency with figures approved in the supplementary budget estimate report. The recommendation has been in cooperated as resolved by this Assembly Madam Speaker. Madam Speaker, I wish you urge the Members to support this bill and give permission to proceed to utilize the fund for completion of development projects and other lines of expenditures outlined hereinbefore the end of the current financial year.

Madam Speaker, I beg to move and request my Minority Leader Hon. Elias Otieno to come and second me. Thank you Madam Speaker.

**Hon. Elias Otieno:** Madam Speaker, with all due respect, I beg to support the Chairperson of Budget and I second the Motion.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Thank you the Minority Leader.

## (Question proposed)

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Thank you, Madam Speaker and I want to thank the Assembly for the spirit that it has shown that we need to rush this thing and this should be replicated even on the other side of the Executive, such that we do not need a scapegoat. We need them to pay these Bills as soon as it is possible. Thank you, Madam Speaker.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Thank you Chair.

(Question put and agreed to)

THE NAIROBI CITY COUNTY SUPPLEMENTARY APPROPRIATION BILL, 2019 (ASSEMBLY BILL NO 4 OF 2019)

AN ACT OF NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUE OF A SUM OF MONEY OUT OF COUNTY REVENUE FUND AND ITS APPLICATION TOWARDS THE SERVICE OF THE YEAR ENDING THE 30<sup>TH</sup> JUNE 2019 AND TO APPROPRIATE THAT SUM AND A SUM VOTED ON ACCOUNT BY THE NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY FOR CERTAIN PUBLIC SERVICES AND PURPOSES.

Second Reading

## COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE HOUSE

(Hon Temporary Deputy Speaker left the Chair)

## IN THE COMMITTEE

(Mr. Temporary Chairman, Hon Silas Matara, took the Chair)

SUPPLEMENTARY APPROPRIATION BILL 2019

**Hon. Temporary Chairman:** Hon members we are now in the committee of the whole assembly to consider the Nairobi City County Assembly Supplementary Appropriation Bill 2019, Assembly Bill No. 4 of 2019 and we will start with Clause 2.

Page	12 (	of <b>13</b>

NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY

Clause 2	
	(Question that Clause 2 be part of the Bill proposed)
	(Question that Clause 2 be part of the Bill put and agreed to)
Clause 3	
	(Question that Clause 3 be part of the Bill proposed)
	(Question that Clause 3 be part of the Bill put and agreed to)
Schedule	
	(Question that Schedule be part of the Bill proposed)
	(Question that Schedule be part of the Bill put and agreed to)
Title	
	(Question that Title be part of the Bill proposed)
	(Question that Tile be part of the Bill put and agreed to)
Clause 1	
	(Question that Clause 1 be part of the Bill proposed)
	(Question that Clause 1 be part of the Bill put and agreed to)

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Mr. Chair I beg to move that the committee do report to the assembly its consideration of the Nairobi City County Assembly Supplementary Appropriation Bill 2019, Assembly Bill No. 4 of 2019 and its approval thereof without amendments, thank you.

Hon. Temporary Chairman: Very well chair of Budget for your submission.

(Question put and agreed to) (The House resumed) (Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker in the Chair)

# **REPORT AND THIRD READING**

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: The chair, Committee of the Whole House?

**Hon. Silas Matara:** Hon Speaker I beg to report that the Committee of the Whole Assembly has considered the Nairobi City County Assembly Supplementary Appropriation Bill 2019, Assembly Bill No. 4 of 2019 and approved the same without amendments.

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** I beg to move that he assembly do agree with the committee of the Whole House in the said report, thank you Madam Speaker.

(Question proposed)

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Hon. Oyugi?

Hon. Kennedy Oyugi: I have not requested, maybe it is a sabotage from my neighbor here.

Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker: Okay it is like nobody requested but next time make sure your mic is off.

(Question put and agreed to)

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Madam Speaker I beg to move that the Nairobi City County Assembly Supplementary Appropriation Bill 2019, Assembly Bill No. 4 of 2019 be now read a Third Time, thank you.

(Question proposed)

**Hon. Mbugua Kabiro:** Thank you much Madam Speaker, I just wanted to talk while you're presiding over the house. I am in agreement, thank you.

**Hon. Robert Mbatia:** Madam Speaker I thank the assembly for allowing this Bill to be read a Third Time. Thank you.

(Question put and agreed to)

(The Bill was accordingly read the Third Time and passed)

# ADJOURNMENT

**Hon. Temporary Deputy Speaker:** Thank you Hon Members, there being no other business the assembly stands adjourned until tomorrow Thursday the 20<sup>th</sup> of June 2019.

# (The House rose at 4 p.m.)